
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: February 23, 2023 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 2/28/2023 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda, and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  

7 Bids and Contracts 
7a Consideration of a contract for Police Department maintenance and towing services – The 
Council is asked to consider award of a one-year contract to Belltown Motors for towing, maintenance 
and repair of Police Vehicles.  Two proposals were received from Monaco Ford of Glastonbury and 
Belltown Motors.  Based on the proposals and the long-term relationship with Belltown Motors, the 
recommendation is to award the contract to Belltown Motors.  Estimated value of work performed 
under the contract is $20,000. 

Recommendation:  Approve award of the contract to Belltown Motors. 

8 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
8a Consideration of an Ordinance implementing additional tax relief programs - After the public 
hearing on the draft ordinance, the Council will continue its review of the optional tax relief programs 
available to property owners in the community and will consider a final version of the ordinance for 
adoption.  In follow up to Council's discussion at its last meeting, some recommended changes are being 
proposed to the ordinance that are intended to clarify the language related to the conditions or actions 
that constitute a “line of duty death” for the program related to the surviving spouse of a public safety 
professional. 

Recommendation:  Adopt the ordinance 

8b Consideration of a Resolution establishing the required committee related to an additional tax 
relief program –  After discussion, it is clear the Council desires to conceive additional relief programs.  
Although it may not have been clear with all of the material and discussion, it is possible for the Town to 
take advantage of section 12-129n of the State Statutes, which allows the Town to create and adopt a 
relief program after development and review by a committee and review by the Board of Finance.  Such 
a program has few limitations and may be conceived however the Council feels is appropriate.  A 
Resolution implementing the  review, is scheduled for consideration by the Council.  The Council may 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 2/28/2023 
February 23, 2023 
Page 2 

decide whether the committee “consisting of not less than five resident taxpayers” will be the Council 
acting as a committee of the whole or will be other resident taxpayers.  The committee will develop and 
consider the impact of the proposed plan on Town tax revenue and will present that to the Board of 
Finance for its review.  The program is allowed to address providing relief for homeowners who are 
seniors or have permanent disabilities. 

Recommendation:  Consider and adopt a version of the Resolution. 

9 Continued Business 
9b Discussion and possible action related to ambulance services  - The Council is asked to consider 
various matters related to ambulance service including follow up and responses to questions asked 
related to the operational review performed by the Association and a recent budget request for an 
additional $173,000 for the Association from the Town to support its operations. 

Recommendation:  Determine the next steps and advise regarding the budget request. 

10 New Business 
10a Consideration of a proposal to pave portions of two unimproved roads – The Council is asked 
to consider a proposal from Department of Public Works Director Walsh to pave portions of both Old 
Clark Hill Road and Bear Swamp Road to address near constant maintenance issues caused by the type 
of wear the road receives or stormwater flow.  As described in Director Walsh’s memo, the work would 
be performed by Town Staff with the cost of materials being covered by funds the Town holds for 
improvements to unimproved roads.  The fund currently has approximately $101,000 received through 
the State’s Town Aid for Roads. 

Recommendation:  Approve paving of the unimproved portions. 

10b Consideration of Police Department General Orders – The Council is asked to review and 
consider updates to three (3) existing General Orders as described in Chief Woessner’s memorandum.  
The policies are being updated to reflect existing practices and changes directed by the Police Officer 
Standards and Training (POST) Council and as part of the Department’s ongoing preparations for 
meeting the Accreditation Standards. 

Recommendation:  Approve the General Orders. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 2/14/2023 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, February 14, 2023 
Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Mark Philhower, Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, 
Brandon Goff, Eric Peterson, Kevin Reich and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Philhower called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers 
and via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Peterson, to adopt the agenda as presented.  
Voted (7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the minutes of the Town 
Council Regular Meeting of January 28, 2023 as written. Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks  
JoAnn Hewitt, 120 Hog Hill Road, commented that she would like to see pickleball courts at Sears 
Park.   

Joe Sabat, Bellevue Street, commented in support of pickleball at Sears Park. 

Eric Rosenberg, 15 Bay Road and Chairman of the Commission on Aging, commented his concern 
about a rumor of the library expanding into the Senior Center.  He doesn’t want to lose the center or 
diminish services for older adults. 

Cindy Craig, volunteer at the Senior Center, does not want to lose the Senior Center and supports an 
upgrade. 

Jo Ann Ewing, Senior Center Director, noted her concerns about the library expanding into the 
Senior Center.  If there were any plans, the seniors should be involved.  The article in the Rivereast 
on February 3 was perceived as a threat by the seniors. 

Sali Cosford Parker, 30 Main Street, noted her concerns about the survey being proposed by the 
Library.  She feels changes should be made so that good data is obtained. 

Presentations 
None  

Bids & Contracts 
None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamations 
None 

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 2/14/2023 Minutes 

Continued Business 
Sub-Committee Reports & Updates 
Mr. Cox reported that the Water Sub-Committee will be meeting the week of February 20th with the 
engineers. 

Mr. Reich reported that the Middle School Roof Committee will have their first meeting on February 
27th at 9:00am. 

Follow-Up Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Tax Relief Programs Including 
Establishing a Public Hearing Date 
Mr. Cox provided a review of the changes to the proposed ordinance regarding tax relief programs.  
Discussion included whether the line under Line of Duty Death should include “Travel to and from 
the place of business is not considered in the line of duty.”  

A motion was made by Mr. Peterson, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to leave the line “Travel to and from 
the place of business is not considered in the line of duty” in the document.  Voted (5-2) Mr. Brown 
and Mr. Goff voted against. 

Council members also agreed to adjust section 278-54 to include a 0% interest rate. 

A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to set a Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
February 28, 2023 during the regular Town Council meeting for the ordinance amendment.  Voted 
(7-0) 

New Business 
Consideration and Possible Action Regarding Library Strategic Plan Survey 
Library Director Tim Kellogg provided an overview of the proposed survey to assist in the process 
of developing the Strategic Plan for 2023-2026.  The Library Advisory Board has approved the 
survey.  Council members expressed their concerns on portions of the survey including building 
initiatives and the timing of when any kind of library project would be done noting the survey 
information could be out of date by that time.   

A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to postpone the Library Strategic Plan 
Survey indefinitely.  Voted (5-2) Mr. Brown and Mr. Reich against. 

Consideration and Possible Action Regarding RFP for Watershed Projects 
Mr. Reich recused himself from this item as he is on the Edgemere Condominium Board. 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the RFP for the Watershed Improvement Project #7 & 8.  The 
memo from Parks & Recreation Director Jeremy Hall that outlines the projects will be included with 
the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the RFP for the Watershed 
Projects #7 & 8 as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

Consideration and Possible Action Regarding Police Department Policies/General Orders 
1) General Order 2.1 - Organizational Structure
2) General Order 2.6 - Organization and Management
3) General Order 5.9 - Traffic Enforcement
4) General Order 5.10 - Securing Prisoners



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 2/14/2023 Minutes 

5) General Order 5.16 - Marine Patrol Operations
6) General Order 8.1 - Recruitment
7) General Order 9.1 - Training-Administration

Police Chief Dennis Woessner provided an overview of the seven General Orders being submitted 
for approval. 

A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Peterson, to approve General Orders 2.1, 2.6, 
5.9, 5.10, 5.16, 8.1 and 9.1 as presented. Voted (7-0) 

Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Cox provided his written report for the Council members which will be included with the 
minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  He also noted he attended a meeting at the RiverCOG. 
Congressman Joe Courtney was in attendance regarding a federal grant that could be used to develop 
roadway safety projects.  The RiverCOG can prepare documents regionally which could include the 
Route 66 corridor, sidewalk improvements or better service for MAT transit.   

Appointments 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Reich, to appoint the following: 
• Ethics Commission – Mary Krogh
• Park & Rec Advisory Board – Natalie Hurt

Voted (7-0) 

Tax Refunds 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve tax refunds in the amount of 
$26,209.37. Voted (7-0). 

Public Remarks 
Marty Swan, EH Volunteer Fire Department, commented that the CT Firefighters Association covers 
firefighters for 24 hours after a call in Line of Duty deaths. 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcements 
a. January 2023 Board & Commission Summary
b. State of CT Drinking Water Section – Well Permit Application – Edgewater Hill
c. Eversource Infrastructure Updates – East of Hurd Park

Council members received the documents listed above.  Mr. Philhower also noted that Terry 
Concannon resigned from the Housing Authority Board. 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Peterson, seconded by Mr. Brown, to adjourn the meeting at 7:50pm.  
Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 



Agenda Item 7a

































RESOLUTION OF THE EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 

A Resolution Establishing A Committee To Consider Tax Relief Programs 

WHEREAS, Section 12-129n of the Connecticut General Statutes provides for development of a 
program for optional expansion of property tax relief as determined by the municipality after 
development and review by a committee of resident taxpayers and the Board of Finance, and; 

WHEREAS, the Town Council determines it is appropriate to expand and enhance the existing 
mandatory and optional programs implemented in East Hampton to the extent possible under the 
law to provide appropriate relief to certain classes of taxpayers most impacted by increases in 
taxes. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; the Town Council hereby establishes a temporary 
committee for the purpose of developing, evaluating and recommending a proposed program for 
tax relief in accordance with Section 12-129n of the Connecticut General Statutes. 

[Membership shall be appointed by the Town Council with a term of 60 days from appointment. 
The committee shall comprise not less than five (5) members who shall be resident taxpayers in 
accordance with Statute.] 

OR 

[The Town Council hereby appoints its entire membership to serve as the aforementioned 
committee and will serve in that additional capacity for 60 days in accordance with Statute.] 

The Tax Relief Program Committee shall be assisted by the Town Manager and the Finance 
Director for the purpose of record keeping and other matters as needed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Town Council has created the Tax Relief Program 
Committee with the express intent to develop and consider in accordance with Statutes a 
program to provide property tax relief to residents of East Hampton, with respect to real property 
owned or held in trust and occupied by such residents as their principal residence, who are sixty-
five years of age and over or with qualifying spouses living with them or are the surviving 
spouse of a qualified taxpayer or for those residents who qualified for disability benefits as 
defined in the Statutes. 

Approved this 28th day of February, 2023. 

TOWN COUNCIL          ATTEST 

___________________________________ ________________________________ 
Mark Philhower, Chairperson Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 

Agenda Item 8b



Agenda Item 9b



Office of Public Works 

Matthew Walsh, P.E., Director 

MEMO 

TO:         David Cox, Town Manager  

FROM:  Matthew Walsh, Director of Public Works  

DATE:   2/23/2023 

SUBJECT:   Unimproved Road funds (gravel road up grades) 

The Department of Public Works would like to utilize a portion of the funds 
in the Unimproved Roads account to cover the cost of paving two small 
sections of gravel roads that are reoccurring maintenance issues for the 
Department. 

 Old Clark Hill Rd from the existing pavement end extending 486-feet
to the top of the hill. This section of road washes out frequently
during heavy rainfall events. Storm water runoff deposits gravel near
Lake Pocotopaug in the intersection of Clark Hill Road, Lake Drive
and North Main Steet. Paving this section of road would significantly
improve the quality of the storm runoff in the area and also help to
limit the required emergency maintenance needed in the area. This
work would be performed by the Department staff with materials
costing approximately $17,000.

 Bear Swamp Rd from Rt 66 extending 300-feet. This section of road
is in constant need of attention due to the large amount of
commercial traffic. Trucks coming in and out of the Arrow Fence
company and traffic from the bowling alley can leave the road
potholed with gravel kicked out onto Route 66. Paving this section
will provide better access for both business as well as the public and
mitigate the maintenance issues. This work would be performed by
the Department staff with materials costing approximately $14,000.

Agenda Item 10a



The Department has also undertaken some projects on other unimproved 
roads in Town to help stabilize them during adverse weather events. The 
major practice being employed is armoring of the roadside swales on steep 
grades with river rock. This treatment helps to stabilize the swale structure 
and keep the storm water runoff in the conveyance system. Other activities 
undertaken include tree removals, drainage cross culvert cleaning, 
stabilization and repair. These types of projects and practices are expected 
to continue using the remaining funds available.  

Please see the attached maps showing the pavement limits and locations, as 
well as the river rock roadside treatment below. 

              Roadside river rock treatment 



Old Clark Hill 
Portion of road to be paved 

Legend 

700 ft

N

➤➤

N



Bear Swamp Rd 
Portion of road to be paved 

Legend 

400 ft

N

➤➤

N



Agenda Item 10b











































































Agenda Item 13


	Unimproved Roads Memo.pdf
	2023Gravel Road Upgrades 
	Clark Hill Rd.pdf
	Bear Swamp Rd.pdf




